
 
 
 
 
 

Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee 
Meeting Agenda 

Thursday, September 9, 2010, 5:30 to 7:30 p.m. 
 

Meeting Outcomes: 
• Receive updates on Countywide Pedestrian and Bicycle Plans 
• Recommend  matching funding for Safe Routes to School Competitive Grant Program 
• Hear final presentation on CDF Grant Cycle 3 project: Buchanan Bicycle and Pedestrian 

Path 
• Receive updates on the countywide walking campaign 
• Hear status of countywide bicycle/pedestrian count program 
• Receive update on Active Transportation legislative effort 
• Review semi‐annual reports on CDF Grant Cycle 3 and Cycle 4 

 
5:30 – 5:35 p.m. 
Midori Tabata 

1. Welcome & Introductions 

5:35 – 5:40 p.m. 
Midori Tabata 

2. Public Comment  I

5:40 – 5:45 p.m. 
Midori Tabata 

3. Approval of June 10, 2010 Minutes 
03_BPAC_Meeting_Minutes_061010.pdf – Page 1 

A

5:45 – 5:55 p.m. 
Staff 

4. Countywide Pedestrian and Bicycle Plan Updates 
 

I

5:55 – 6:25 p.m. 
Staff 

5. Safe Routes to School Competitive Grant Application 
05_Memo_SR2S_Grant_Program.pdf – Page 7 
05A_SR2S_Grant_Program_Application.pdf – Page 11 
05B_SR2S_Countywide_Program_Workscope.pdf – Page 23 

A

6:25 – 6:45 p.m. 
Aleida Andrino‐
Chavez 

6. Sponsor Presentation: Buchanan Bicycle and Pedestrian Path 
06_Progress_Report_Buchanan_Path.pdf – Page 29 

I

6:45 – 6:55 p.m. 
Staff 

7. Countywide Walking Campaign Update 
 

I

6:55 – 7:05 p.m. 
Staff 

8. Countywide Bicycle/Pedestrian Count Program Update 
08_Memo_Count_Program_Status.pdf – Page 33 
08A_Selection_Criteria_for_Count_Locations.pdf – Page 37 

I



Alameda CTC Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee Meeting Agenda  Meeting Date: 09/09/2010 
    Page 2 
 
7:05 – 7:15 p.m. 
Staff 

9. Active Transportation Legislative Effort Update I

7:15 – 7:25 p.m. 
Staff 

10. Board Actions/Staff Reports 
10_Semi_Annual_CDF_Grant_Progress_Reports.pdf – Page 39 
10A_Per_Diem_Process.pdf – Page 95 

I

7:25 ‐7:30 p.m. 
BPAC Members 

11. BPAC Member Reports 
11_BPAC_Calendar.pdf – Page 97 
11A_BPAC_Roster.pdf – Page 99 

I

7:30 p.m.  12. Adjournment 

Key: A – Action Item; I – Information/Discussion Item; full packet available at www.alamedactc.org  

Next Meeting: 
  Date:  October 14, 2010 
  Time:  5:30 to 7:30 p.m. 
  Location:  ACTIA Offices 
 
 
Location Information: ACTIA is located in Downtown Oakland at the intersection of 14th Street and Broadway. The 
office is just a few steps away from the City Center/12th Street BART station. Bicycle parking is available inside the 
building, and in electronic lockers at 14th and Broadway near Frank Ogawa Plaza (requires purchase of key card 
from bikelink.org). There is garage parking for autos and bicycles in the City Center Garage (enter on 14th Street 
between Broadway and Clay). Visit the ACTIA website for more information on how to get to ACTIA: 
http://www.actia2022.com/directions.html. 
 
Public Comment: Members of the public may address the committee regarding any item, including an item not on 
the agenda. All items on the agenda are subject to action and/or change by the committee. The chair may change 
the order of items. 
 
Accommodations/Accessibility: Meetings are wheelchair accessible. Please do not wear scented products so that 
individuals with environmental sensitivities may attend. Call (510) 893‐3347 (Voice) or (510) 834‐6754 (TTD) five 
days in advance to request a sign‐language interpreter. 
 

http://www.actia2022.com/
http://www.actia2022.com/directions.html


BPAC Meeting 09/09/10 
Attachment 03 

 
 
 

 
 
 

ACTIA Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, June 10, 2010, 5:30 p.m., 1333 Broadway, Suite 300, Oakland 

 
Attendance Key (A = Absent, P = Present) 

Members: 
__P__ Midori Tabata, Chair 
__A__ David Boyer 
__P__ Alex Chen 
__A__ Lucy Gigli 
__P__ Marcy Greenhut 
__P__ Gil Johnson 

__P__ Preston Jordan 
__P__ Glenn Kirby 
__A__ Anthony Salomone 
__A__ Tom Van Demark 
__P__ Ann Welsh 

 
Staff: 
__P__ Tess Lengyel, Programs and Public Affairs 

Manager 
__P__ Rochelle Wheeler, Bicycle and Pedestrian 

Coordinator 

__A__ Keonnis Taylor, Programs Coordinator 
__P__ Diane Stark, ACCMA 
__P__ Angie Ayers, Acumen Building Enterprise

 
 
1. Welcome and Introductions 

Midori Tabata, BPAC Chair, called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. The meeting began with 
introductions and a review of the meeting outcomes. 
 

2. Public Comments 
There were no public comments. 
 

3. Approval of June 10, 2010 Minutes 
Gil Johnson moved that BPAC approve the June 20, 2010 minutes as written. Alex Chen 
seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously (7‐0). 

 
4. Countywide Discretionary Fund Cycle 4 Evaluation 

Rochelle Wheeler requested BPAC members provide final feedback on the evaluation of 
Cycle 4 of the Countywide Discretionary Fund (CDF) grant program. Rochelle stated that no 
action is requested. The feedback will be used to revise the grant program guidelines and 
scoring criteria for the next funding cycle. 
 
Staff and the BPAC members reviewed the list of discussion items from the June 2009 
meeting, and the BPAC consensus for each discussion item. The BPAC members provided 
the following additional input on these items: 
 

   

Page 1



ACTIA Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee June 10, 2010 Meeting Minutes  2 

 

A. Geographic equity goal 
In response to a BPAC question, staff clarified that the enabling Measure B 
legislation does not require that the grant funds be distributed based on planning 
area population. The recommendation for equity by planning area was developed by 
staff and approved in the Program Guidelines by the ACTIA Board. 
Another member observed that, with the possible reauthorization of Measure B, 
there may only be one more CDF grant cycle. Therefore, it’s important to focus on 
funding the South County projects sooner rather than later. Also, the member noted 
that the projects considered for Regional Bicycle Program funding were all from 
North County and East County. This pattern shows that there is a countywide 
funding imbalance which should be considered. If BPAC can perform outreach and 
assist South County in completing successful grants, they may have a chance of 
receiving more funds.  

 
B. New scoring criteria 

The BPAC members did not have additional comments for this discussion topic. The 
information outlined in the memo was sufficient. 
 

C. Funding for ongoing programs (such as Bicycle Safety Education and Safe Routes to 
Schools (SR2S)) 
 
The BPAC requested that this summary be modified to show that there was not 
“general consensus” among BPAC members that the on‐going programs should 
continue to receive Measure B funding. One member believes that programs should 
be piloted with Measure B funding, and then should be self‐sustaining. There was 
concern among several members about the amount of Measure B funding going 
towards on‐going programs, and fear that this would continue increasing. Some 
members do not believe this was the intent of the CDF program.   
 
Some members also have concern about taking funding from the CDF program 
between funding cycles, without a competitive process, such as was done for the 
Safe Routes to School program this year. This diminishes the future pot of funding 
for the next cycle. 
 
There was a suggestion that perhaps there should be a cap on the percentage of the 
CDF funds used for on‐going programs. One member stated that the Countywide 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Plans will review the effectiveness of programs, versus capital 
projects, and that this should guide the decision on funding for programs. 
 

D. Timing of the next funding cycle 
Timing is to be determined. Staff wants to make sure that the Countywide Bicycle 
and Pedestrian Plans updates are complete before issuing the next call for projects. 
 

   

Page 2



ACTIA Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee June 10, 2010 Meeting Minutes  3 

 

E. Evaluation criteria and procedure weighting 
This topic had not been discussed by the BPAC. Staff provided a summary of the 
June 2009 discussion and identified the key issues. Staff along with the BPAC will 
look at the evaluation procedures and at splitting into two scoring groups more 
closely before the next call for projects. The following comments were made: 
 

• Regarding potential applicants, changing the criteria may assist staff and 
BPAC in reviewing the applications, but it may impact applicants negatively, 
as they try to figure out what projects to submit. They will need much 
advance notice of any changes in criteria. 

 
• Part of the inconsistency in scoring between the two rounds is the large 

number of applications that must be reviewed. BPAC members may not have 
time to sufficiently review all in detail. Instead of waiting for a large amount 
of funding to be released, which results in many applications, consider doing 
a call for projects sooner so there will be a smaller pool of applications to 
review. 

 
• Leave the subjectivity in the process. 

 
• The judgment outside of the criteria is in question. How do we translate site 

visits into criteria modifications? 
 

• There will always be subjectivity; the goal should be to acknowledge it and 
make it obvious to applicants. 

 
5. Countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan Updates 

Rochelle Wheeler and Diane Stark presented an update on the Countywide Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Plan updates. Rochelle stated that the project timeline is still being finalized. The 
kick‐off meeting with the Bicycle and Pedestrian Plans Working Group took place on June 3, 
2010, and staff received input on the table of contents, timeline, and outreach strategy. 
 
BPAC members provided the following input: 
 
Summary of Input on the Scope of Work for the Updates: 

• Members requested that staff “map” how this input is being addressed in the 
proposed Table of Contents. 

 
Table of Contents: 

• In the Bicycle Plan, Chapter 3, items j and m are redundant. 
• Listing the maps in the table of contents would be helpful. 
• The executive summaries will be highly used and are very important. Need to scope 

out how they are laid out and who they are directed to. 
• One member said it looks great! Looks like a lot of work will be done. 

Page 3



ACTIA Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee June 10, 2010 Meeting Minutes  4 

 

• In Chapter 7 (Implementation), under discussion of projected revenue (c) for both 
plans –  important to cover potential funding sources available for capital projects, 
programs, and planning (or whatever the priority areas are determined to be) 
separately. 

 
Timeline: 

• The BPAC members agreed that they would like input on the priorities methodology 
and strategy discussions. 

• A member suggested combining the visions, goals, and priorities discussion. The 
BPAC members would like to see an early draft of these items. 

• In terms of meeting schedules, BPAC members did not have a preference for 
meeting before or after the Plans Working Group. 

 
Outreach Strategy: 

• The BPAC members inquired if the Bicycle and Pedestrian Plans will be presented at 
the Transportation Forums. The turnout at the forums is generally good. 

• For Oakland meetings, invite known advocacy groups to the meetings (WalkOakland 
BikeOakland and Bike Alameda). 

• Consider reaching out to senior centers. 
• Some local BPAC members may not be too invested in the Countywide Plans, since 

they don’t meet very often. 
• A suggestion was made to get people involved early on during the visions and goals 

discussions, so they feel like they have meaningful input. 
• Local BPACs will be most interested in vision & goals, and priority projects & 

programs. 
• A suggestion was made to look at other municipalities (Portland and Washington 

D.C.) for ideas and what they may have done to encourage walking and biking. 
 

6. Organizational Meeting 
A. BPAC Fiscal Year 2009‐2010 Action Logs 

BPAC members reviewed the actions logs for fiscal year 2009‐2010. 
 

B. ACTIA’s Fiscal Year 2010‐2011 Bike/Ped Work Program 
Rochelle reported that the updates to the Countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Plans will 
be the major staff effort, and the main subject of BPAC meetings this year. Coordination 
with the Countywide Transportation Plan and Transportation Expenditure Plan (CWTP‐
TEP) is also in progress. The countywide bicycle and pedestrian count effort will take 
place in the fall, and a walking promotional program will be launched in the fall, as well. 
 

C. BPAC Fiscal Year 2010‐2011 Meeting Calendar 
The BPAC meeting schedule will be developed to coincide with the Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Plan updates. The next BPAC meeting is scheduled for September 9, 2010. A 
complete calendar will be in the September meeting packet. 
 

Page 4



ACTIA Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee June 10, 2010 Meeting Minutes  5 

 

The BPAC also discussed the length of meetings. In general, members did not object to 
meetings longer than two hours and several members stated that they would prefer 
fewer, but longer meetings, to more frequent, but shorter meetings. 
 

D. Approve BPAC Bylaws 
Rochelle reviewed the staff’s recommended edits to the Bylaws, including the removal 
of member term limits.  Staff mentioned that because of the ACTIA/CMA merger, 
additional changes may be required to the BPAC Bylaws later this fiscal year. Staff 
recommended against changing the name of the BPAC at this time, but the BPAC may 
wish to discuss this further when the Bylaws are reviewed again. 
 
Gil Johnson moved to adopt the Bylaws as amended. Marcy Greenhut seconded the 
motion. The motion carried unanimously (7‐0). 

 
7. Election of Officers for Fiscal Year 2010‐2011 

Preston Jordan nominated Midori Tabata as Chair, and Midori Tabata nominated Tom Van 
Demark as Vice Chair. 
 
Glenn Kirby moved to accept Midori Tabata for Chair and Tom Van Demark as Vice Chair. Gil 
Johnson seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously (7‐0). 

 
8. Appoint BPAC Representative to the Countywide Transportation Plan and Expenditure 

Plan Development Community Advisory Working Group (CAWG) 
Tess Lengyel led a discussion on the roles and responsibilities, and representation, on the 
newly formed CAWG. ACTIA and the Alameda County Congestion Management Agency 
(CMA) are in the process of coordinating the updates of the Countywide Transportation 
Plan and Expenditure Plan for the sales tax reauthorization. The two Boards established a 
Steering Committee comprised of elected officials to lead these efforts. One of the actions 
by the Steering Committee is to create two additional groups, the CAWG and the Technical 
Advisory Working Group (TAWG) to advise the Steering Committee. The 27‐member CAWG 
will review the vision, projects, and programs, and will make comments and 
recommendations to both the Steering Committee and TAWG. 
 
Tess requested three volunteers to apply for a position on CAWG. She mentioned that more 
than one member can submit an application, which the Steering Committee will review. The 
following BPAC members volunteered to apply for an appointment: 

• Midori Tabata 
• Tom Van Demark 
• Ann Welsh 

 
9. Board Actions/Staff Reports 

Tess Lengyel announced the upcoming South County Transportation Forum on July 15, 2010 
at the Ruggieri Senior Center in Union City and encouraged BPAC members to attend. She 
also provided an update on the ACTIA/CMA merger, and noted that the national 
recruitment for a new Executive Director was underway. 

Page 5



ACTIA Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee June 10, 2010 Meeting Minutes  6 

 

 
10. BPAC Member Reports 

Preston Jordan announced that he conducted bike and pedestrian counts on the Ohlone 
Greenway and along Washington and Masonic in Albany. About 120 people an hour passed 
through the intersections.  
 
Marcy Greenhut announced that this is her last meeting. She stated that she needs a break 
and may consider coming back at a later time. 
 

11. Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 8:10 p.m. 

Page 6



BPAC Meeting 09/09/10 
Attachment 05 

 

 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date:    September 2, 2010   
 
To:    Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee   
 
From:    Rochelle Wheeler, Countywide Bicycle & Pedestrian Coordinator 
    Tess Lengyel, Programs and Public Affairs Manager 
 
Subject:  Safe Routes to School Competitive Grant Application and Matching Funding 
 
 
Recommendations 
Staff  recommends  that  the  BPAC  recommend  that  the  Alameda  County  Transportation 
Commission  (Alameda  CTC)  accept  the  public  sponsor  role  and  approve  up  to  $65,000  in 
Measure  B  Bicycle  and  Pedestrian  Safety  Funds  to  secure  the  match  for  the  $500,000 
competitive grant for “The BikeMobile: A Bike Repair and Encouragement Vehicle”, under the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s  (MTC’s)  Safe Routes  to  School  (SR2S)  competitive 
grant program. However, staff will work to acquire funds from other sources to backfill as much 
of  this amount as possible  if awarded  the project. Alameda CTC  staff  submitted  the grant  to 
MTC with Cycles of Change in August.  
 
Summary 
In spring 2010, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) issued a call for projects for 
a new Climate Initiatives Program, which included $2.0 million for creative and innovative Safe 
Routes to School programs. Cycles of Change, a local non‐profit offering bicycle education and 
repair and a partner in the current Alameda County Safe Routes to Schools program, 
approached ACTIA and CMA staff requesting that we be a public sponsor and provide local 
matching funds to create a mobile bicycle repair and encouragement program using a vehicle 
that would regularly visit schools with SR2S programs, recreation centers, and other applicable 
sites. After evaluating the merits of the proposed innovative program and working with Cycles 
of Change to ensure that the program would supplement the new countywide Safe Routes to 
School program (to be funded with the MTC SR2S funding and to begin in July 2011), staff 
recommends that Alameda CTC be the public sponsor and provide the local match. The 
application (Attachment 05A), which was due on August 13, was submitted with the 
understanding that the Alameda CTC would have to authorize this action at their September 
meeting. If funded, the program would be implemented by Cycles of Change, with Alameda CTC 
acting in an oversight role. 

Page 7



 
Alameda CTC Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee  September 2, 2010 
Safe Routes to School Competitive Grant Application and Matching Funding  2 

Background 
Over the past year, MTC has created two regional Safe Routes to School funding programs 
under the Climate Initiatives category of the Regional Transportation Plan – (1) a countywide 
allocation for general SR2S programs and (2) a regionally‐competitive grant program for new 
creative SR2S efforts.  
 
In July 2010, the Alameda CTC approved Alameda County’s four‐part approach for a countywide 
Safe Routes to Schools program, and the use of $420,000 to match the county’s allocation of 
$3.22 million in federal funding. This $420,000 will come from the Measure B 
Bicycle/Pedestrian Countywide discretionary funds. The ACTIA BPAC reviewed the SR2S 
program and recommended this source for matching funds at their May 2010 meeting. The 
final countywide SR2S work scope was submitted to MTC, as required, on July 31 and is 
attached for background information (see Attachment 05B). 
 
The MTC regionally‐competitive grant program, intended to fund creative and innovative 
efforts, had two phases – first, Letters of Interest had to be submitted, and then after reviewing 
the letters, MTC invited selected applicants to submit full applications. ACCMA staff submitted 
a Letter of Interest for a SR2S Commute Alternatives Program which did not move forward to 
the second phase of the application process. 
 
Cycles of Change also submitted a Letter of Interest for a “BikeMobile Program” and were 
invited to submit a full application. All non‐profit applicants are required to have a public 
sponsor, and Cycles of Change approached several public agencies, including Alameda CTC and 
the Alameda County Public Health Department. The Public Health Department was unable to 
offer to be the sponsor, since they are not familiar with the federal transportation funding 
processes. Cycles of Change also asked if Alameda CTC could provide the required 11.5% local 
match, since they did not feel they could assemble this amount of matching funds in the short 
period before the grant application was due, if at all. 
 
After evaluating the proposed program and working with Cycles of Change, Alameda CTC staff 
determined that, if funded, this innovative program would benefit the county’s Safe Routes to 
School program. Staff worked with Cycles of Change on developing the final application 
(Attachment 05A), and in particular ensuring that it would be strongly linked to the countywide 
SR2S program that is proposed to begin in July 2011 with new high school, commute alternative 
and capital funding elements. It is believed that the administration of this program can be 
wrapped into the overall administration of the new countywide SR2S program, and that this 
additional program will not require a large amount of additional staff resources. Finally, if 
funded, the $65,000 in matching funds will leverage $500,000 in new funding for the county.  
 
Grant Description 
Cycles of Change has found that a large number of children have bicycles that are broken and 
not ride‐able, or not well‐maintained and therefore unsafe or uncomfortable to ride. Often 
these children do not live near bicycle shops, nor do they have resources to pay for bicycle 

Page 8



 
Alameda CTC Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee  September 2, 2010 
Safe Routes to School Competitive Grant Application and Matching Funding  3 

repair. The BikeMobile program will purchase and operate a truck that will be fully staffed to 
offer bicycle repair, bicycle safety instruction and encouragement to ride. The services will be 
primarily geared toward students, but will also serve interested parents, teachers and school 
staff, and are expected to reach over 3,000 individuals via up to 275 site visits over two years. 
The BikeMobile program will support existing sites with Safe Routes to School programs and 
also outreach to recreation centers, and community events to repair broken bikes, teach hands‐
on bike repair, offer safety trainings, and promote biking to school.   
 
The total program budget is $565,000 and includes funding for staffing, equipment, materials, 
program evaluation, contingency, and public sponsor implementation for a two‐year period. 
The staffing budget includes funding for the countywide SR2S program staff to market the 
BikeMobile and assist with data collection for the evaluation of the program. 
 
Matching Funding 
As mentioned above, this grant requires an 11.5% local match, which totals $65,000 for the 
BikeMobile. Staff recommend that up to $65,000 of Measure B funds be secured for the match; 
however, if awarded the grant, staff will work to acquire funds from other sources to backfill as 
much of this amount as possible. 
 
Future Uses of Bike/Ped Countywide Discretionary Funds (CDF)  
The multiple requests to use CDF funds to match Safe Routes to School programs has made 
staff aware that a process is needed for addressing requests for matching funds for 
bicycle/pedestrian programs and projects. Staff will review different options and bring them to 
the BPAC to consider at a future meeting. One model that will be considered is the Measure B 
Paratransit Gap Grant program which has guidelines for matching fund requests and sets aside 
a maximum amount that can be used each year. 
 
Next Steps 
MTC is in the process of reviewing the submitted grant applications, and will make a final 
funding decision at their October Commission meeting. If the grant is successful, the Alameda 
CTC implementation of this grant program is proposed to be coordinated with the overall 
countywide SR2S program. Cycles of Change would implement the program in the field 
beginning in July 2011, and Alameda CTC would be responsible for making sure the grant 
program is implemented and delivered as described in the grant application. 
 
   

Page 9



 
Alameda CTC Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee  September 2, 2010 
Safe Routes to School Competitive Grant Application and Matching Funding  4 

Fiscal Impacts 
If authorized and  the grant  is successful, $65,000  from  the Measure B Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Safety Fund would be used to match the $500,000 grant. 
 
Attachments 
05A_SR2S_Grant_Program_Application.pdf 
05B_SR2S_Countywide_Program_Workscope.pdf 
 

Page 10



BPAC Meeting 09/09/10 
              Attachment 05A

Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Alameda County Safe Routes to School Program 
Proposed Workscope for Program 

July 30, 2010 
 

Goals and Objectives of Overall Program 

• Will be an “Alameda County” program, with the program policies, goals and contractor 
selection made by the Alameda CTC Board;  

• Will be one cohesive program, with all elements integrated and coordinated, even if 
implemented by different entities; 

• Will build on and continue existing efforts and successes; 

• Will complement other SR2S funding programs, which are mostly for capital projects; 

• Will address traditional SR2S 5 E’s (Education, Encouragement, Engineering, 
Enforcement, Evaluation) as well as a 6th E, Emission Reductions, to address the air 
quality component of the new program; and 

• Will be designed to meet eligibility requirements of funding source (federal CMAQ).  

 
Description of the four Program Elements (including scope of work and schedule for each) 

Program Element 1: Alameda County SR2S Program - Elementary & Middle Schools (K-8) 

Project Manager: Tess Lengyel, ACTIA 

Email:  tlengyel@actia2022.com 
 

• Background: 
o There are 225 elementary and 56 middle schools in the county (281 total) with 

147,000 students (68% of all students in county).  
o Existing program is operating comprehensive programs in 83 schools (73 

elementary + 10 middle). This is 30% of all elementary/middle schools in the 
county. 

o By June 2011, the existing program will be established in 90 schools 
o Established programs at 90 schools over a four-year period. Based upon the funding 

amounts available through this program, plan to maintain this program level. 

• Description/Work Products: 
o Continue SR2S programs (similar in scope of work that has been performed with 

ACTIA grant funds) in 90 schools. 
o Include Bike Safety Education (similar scope of work that has been performed with 

ACTIA grant funds). 
o Program details: bike safety education classes, curriculum development, trainings, 

walking school buses, assemblies, puppet shows, monthly Walk to School Days, 

BPAC Meeting 09/09/10 
              Attachment 05B

Page 23



Alameda County SR2S Program Workscope, Page 2 of 5 

promotional events and activities, collaboration with enforcement, walk audits, 
web-based resources, technical assistance. 

o Evaluation of Program Element 

• Implementation/Schedule:  
o Current ACTIA-funded SR2S program funded through June 30, 2011. 
o Request E-76 for FFY 10/11funding by February 1, 2011. 
o Release a Request for Proposals (RFP) during spring 2011 for a team to operate one 

program countywide (team may have subconsultant(s) and could be coordinated 
with High School consultant team).  

o Select consultant for countywide program by July 1, 2011.  
o New MTC-funded program proposed to start July 1, 2011 and end June 30, 2013. 

Program Element 2: Alameda County SR2S Program - High Schools  

Project Manager: Tess Lengyel, ACTIA 

Email:  tlengyel@actia2022.com 
 

• Background: 
o No HS programs currently 
o Different target group from elementary/middle school students, so needs a 

separate approach that appeals to this age group. 
o 63 high schools in county with about 68,000 students (32% of students in the 

county) 

• Description/Work Products: 
o Develop new program, based on national and local models (i.e. Sonoma County, 

Marin County and Palo Alto examples). 
o Pilot the program in the first year with five schools that differ in size and 

geographic location. Expand the program to 5-8 more schools in the second year, 
and maintain the original five programs, for a total of 10-13 schools. 

o Program details: TBD. Would be based on best practices. Could include social 
marketing and parking management.

o Evaluation of Program Element 

• Implementation/Schedule:  
o Request E-76 for FFY 10/11funding by February 1, 2011. 
o Release a Request for Proposals to during spring 2011 for a team to operate 

one program countywide (Team may have sub-consultant(s) and could be 
coordinated with elementary and middle school team).  

o Create new High School SR2S program in 15%-20% of all high schools 
(10-13 schools) by June 30, 2013. 

o New program proposed to start July 1, 2011 and end June 30, 2013.  

Page 24



Alameda County SR2S Program Workscope, Page 3 of 5 

Program Element 3: Alameda County SR2S Program - Ridesharing/Carpool/Clean Air  

Project Manager: Beth Walukas, ACCMA 

Email:  BWalukas@accma.ca.gov 
 

• Background: 
o 349 schools in county with about 21,000 staff/teachers. 
o 22 school districts total; 16 with 100 or more staff/teachers. 
o Thousands of parents. 

 
• Description/Work Products: 

o Develop a pilot ridesharing/carpool/clean air program, which is based on 
researched need and effectiveness.  

o Program would create a new program for those working at schools, where 
none currently exists, reduce emissions related to staff, teacher and parent 
vehicle trips, and expand opportunities for students who can’t bike/walk to 
school. 

o Program targeted at school campuses, with programs initially established in 
a limited number of school districts (initial strategy is to pursue a program 
in one to two school districts).  

o Primary target audience: Faculty and staff at schools.  
 Consider including HS students as riders with legal drivers. Student 

drivers that can legally carry passengers may also be candidates for 
this program.  

 Begin program with school sites, but consider and evaluate benefits 
of including district offices, if large enough and/or near a school. 

o Program details TBD, but could include the following:  
 TDM program for faculty/staff that promotes walk, bike, carpool, 

transit modes. 
 Promote/modify 511 “school pool” module 
 Marin “School Pool” model (www.schoolpoolmarin.org) 
 Dynamic ride sharing  
 Tie to High School Program, since students can be riders under 

some circumstances. 
o Evaluation of Program Element 

 
 

• Implementation/Schedule:  
o Program administrator to request E-76 for FFY 10/11funding by February 

1, 2011. 
o Request for Proposals to hire a team to operate a program countywide. 

Program could coordinate with the K-8 and high school programs.  
o New program proposed to start July 1, 2011 and end by June 30, 2013. 

Page 25



Alameda County SR2S Program Workscope, Page 4 of 5 

Program Element 4: Alameda County SR2S Capital Program  

Project Manager:  Matt Todd, ACCMA 

Email:   MTodd@accma.ca.gov 
 

• Description/ Work Products: 
o Technical Assistance Program:  Provide assistance to local agencies in 

identifying and designing engineering solutions for projects that encourage 
non-automotive school trips.  

 Walk audits may be considered, if non-CMAQ funds are available. 
 Would fund pre-construction phases, such as preliminary 

engineering, environmental, PS&E. May also include other SR2S 
project development efforts. 

 Model after “Technical Assistance Program” (TAP). 
o Capital Program: Funding for capital improvements.  

 Projects that flow from a TAP project or completed walk audit could 
be considered in the project evaluation. 

 Projects will need to be CMAQ eligible. 
o Propose to give priority to projects that have a match, but not require it. 
o All schools would be eligible. The status of a school’s comprehensive SR2S 

program could be considered in the project evaluation.  
o Geographic equity will be considered in project selection.  
o Staff Resource Assistance, including considering financial assistance for 

local agency staff time associated with SR2S project development efforts 
(assuming a program administrative structure that meets federal aid 
requirements is available). 

 
• Implementation/Schedule:  

o Technical Assistance Program (PE activities): 
 Release Request for Qualifications (RFQ) during fall or winter 2010 

to develop a prequalified list of on-call consultants 
(engineers/planners) to assign to the selected projects. 

 Release call for projects fall or winter 2010 for local agencies to 
determine who receives assistance for PE activities. 

 TIP amended to include PE activity scope by January 2011. 

▪ Program administrator to request E-76 for FFY 10/11 PE funds by 
February 1, 2011. 

o Capital Program: 
 Release call for projects for local agencies during spring or summer 

2011. 
 TIP amended to add selected projects to TIP. 

Page 26



Alameda County SR2S Program Workscope, Page 5 of 5 

 Selected sponsors request E-76 for FFY 11/12 funding for 
construction between October 1, 2011 and February 1, 2012. 

Program Cost and Funding  
• See SR2S Workscope budget attachment for cost and funding breakdown. 
• The ACTIA Board approved the use of up to $420,000 of Measure B Bike/Ped 

CDF grant funds for the local match on May 27, 2010.  
• STP funding requested for CMAQ ineligible walking audits and project 

development activities that are seen as crucial for implementing a successful 
countywide program. It is estimated that these activities account for approximately 
11% of the program budget.  

 
 
Attachments: 
Alameda County SR2S Program Budget  

Page 27



Workscope Attachment 

ALAMEDA COUNTY SR2S PROGRAM 

Final Proposed Budget 1:

Program Element
Funding Range
Low-Mid-High Total Amount % of Total Requested CMAQ Requested STP 2 Local Match 3

1. Elementary & Middle Schools $1,500,000-$1,700,000-$1,900,000 1,700,000$                47% 1,305,000$                200,000$                   195,000$                   
2. High Schools $320,000-$360,000-$400,000  $                   360,000 10% 319,000$                   41,000$                     
3. Commute Alternatives $226,000-$278,000-$330,000 278,000$                   8% 246,000$                   32,000$                     

Subtotal $2,338,000 2,338,000$                64% 1,870,000$                200,000$                   268,000$                   $                              
4. Capital Program (includes PE activities) $1,300,000 1,300,000$                36% 951,000$                   200,000$                   149,000$                   

Subtotal $1,300,000 1,300,000$                36% 951,000$                   200,000$                   149,000$                   
Totals $3,638,000 3,638,000$             100% 2,821,000$             400,000$                417,000$                

Goals and Assumptions

-Funding will cover 2 years of program operations

1. Elementary & Middle Schools

2. High Schools

3. Commute Alternatives

4. Capital & TAP Program

Notes 

Sample Program Budget 
(Using Mid Point Targets)

-Staff proposes to procure Program Elements 1, 2 and 3 through one RFP. Staff has estimated costs of the types of services that would be included in the program. Actual costs of the 
services/programs provided will vary. Staff proposes to include targets (such as schools by area, number of bike events, number of walking audits and monitoring requirements) in the RFP. The 
actual funds needed to meet those targets will likely fall in the ranges detailed above. ACTAC will be requested to review the RFP document prior to its release.

Per school costs can range from $2,000 to over $25,000 depending upon the types of programs implemented at schools.  For budget estimating 
purposes, an average cost of $10K per school site was used. Continue to implement SR2S programs in elementary and middle schools that will 
reach 30% of all schools (90 total) by June 30, 2011, and offer technical assistance to all schools upon request, by June 30, 2013. 

Sample Funding Budget for Total Amount
(Using Mid Point Targets)

2. STP funding requested for CMAQ ineligible walking audits and project development activities that are seen as crucial for implementing a successful countywide program. It is estimated that 
these activities account for approximately 10% of the program budget. 

1. Program evaluation is built into the budgets for each element and includes at a minimum direct data collection in the program classrooms or schools. 
    Budget assumes 7.5% -10% for program evaluation costs.

3. The ACTIA Board approved the use of up to $420,000 of Measure B Bike/Ped CDF grant funds for the local match on May 27, 2010. 

$1,300,000 for a combination of capital grants, technical assistance and staff resources.

Per school costs will vary. For budgeting purposes an average estimated cost of $20K for the 1st year and $15K for the 2nd year per school site was 
used. Pilot program in 5 schools for first year and add 5 - 8 more second year = 10 -13 schools. 

Because this program will be implemented based upon best practices, staff recommends that this program be scaleable to allow for the combined 
use of funds in programs 1-3 that results in the highest reduction of vehicle trips to schools. The goal is to implement this program  in 1-2 school 
districts.

7/30/2010 Page 28



BPAC Meeting 09/09/10 
                 Attachment 06

Page 29



BPAC Meeting 09/09/10 
                 Attachment 06

Page 30



BPAC Meeting 09/09/10 
                 Attachment 06

Page 31



 

 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 
 

 Page 32



BPAC Meeting 09/09/10 
Attachment 08 

 

 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date:    September 2, 2010 
 
To:    Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee   
 
From:    Rochelle Wheeler, Countywide Bicycle & Pedestrian Coordinator 
    Tess Lengyel, Programs and Public Affairs Manager 
 
Subject:  Update on Countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Count Program  
 
 
Recommendations 
This item is for information only. No action is recommended.  
 
Summary 
Alameda County Transportation Commission (Alameda CTC) is working with the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC) to conduct bicycle and pedestrian counts in Alameda County 
at up to 63 sites during September and October 2010, as part of an annual countywide bicycle 
and pedestrian counting effort. By piggy‐backing on a consultant contract that MTC already had 
for their regional bicycle/pedestrian counts, Alameda CTC has saved staff time and resources, 
and is able to have counts conducted at many more intersections than had been anticipated. 
 
Background 
Since 2002, there have been several efforts to count bicyclists and pedestrians on a regular 
basis in Alameda County. The Alameda County Congestion Management Agency’s (ACCMA’s) 
biennial Level of Service (LOS) Monitoring Study began in 2002 and has included bicycle counts 
at 12 locations voluntarily conducted by local jurisdictions, in 2002, 2004, 2006 and 2008. (In 
addition, some local jurisdictions conduct their own counts on a varied basis.) The MTC 
conducted a regional bicycle and pedestrian count program in 2003 and 2004, and is now re‐
starting this program in 2010 with the hope that it will occur annually. In 2008 and 2009 UC 
Berkeley’s SafeTREC (formerly the Traffic Safety Center), with funding and support from ACTIA, 
conducted bicycle and pedestrian counts at multiple locations around the county. 
 
In 2010, ACTIA began to evaluate which locations should be counted on an annual basis in order 
to see trends in walking and bicycling in the county. The ACTIA Board authorized funding to 
conduct the 2010 counts in January. Staff developed a short draft list of sites to be counted, 
given an anticipated cost per location. Subsequently, MTC released a consultant contract to 

Page 33



 
Alameda CTC Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee  September 2, 2010 
Update on Countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Count Program  2 

conduct regional counts and the consultant stated they would count all proposed 100 sites, 
including the designated 13 locations in Alameda County.  Staff then worked with MTC to add 
additional Alameda County locations to the MTC consultant contract, which resulted in the cost 
per count location being lower than anticipated. 
 
Alameda CTC staff recommended counting at as many locations in 2010 as could be reasonably 
accommodated within the MTC contract. An additional 50 locations were added to their 
contract. This will leave funding for other count efforts, including possible multi‐use pathway 
counts and data analysis. In future years, all of the proposed sites may not be counted every 
year, given that costs may be higher and given that MTC may not have the budget to do annual 
bike/pedestrian counts, but it is hoped that most sites will be counted at least every other year 
in the future.  
 
Selection Criteria for Count Locations 
The 2010 manual bicycle and pedestrian counts, to be conducted utilizing MTC’s consultant, will 
be done at up to 63 locations in Alameda County. In selecting these locations, listed in 
Attachment 08A, Alameda CTC staff used the following criteria:  

Primary Criteria (in order of importance) 
1. Locations where counts have been conducted historically (in order to see trends).  
2. On the Countywide Bicycle and/or Pedestrian Network  
3. Geographic equity by planning area based on population 

Secondary Criteria  
• Variety of land uses ‐ commercial, residential, employment centers, etc 
• Variety of land use density (within ¼‐mile radius) ‐ high, medium and low 
• Variety of street types 
• Some sites near transit (within a ¼‐mile radius) 
• Some sites near multi‐use trails (within a ¼‐mile radius) 
• Some sites near schools  (within a ¼‐mile radius) 
• Minimum distance between count locations of ¼ mile to reduce interdependence 

between the sample locations 
 
The draft list of locations was emailed to all local bicycle/pedestrian coordinators for their 
review and input, as well as the Alameda CTC BPAC. This input was reviewed and incorporated 
as feasible to create the final list (Attachment 08A) which was provided to MTC’s consultant. 
 
Schedule 
Manual counts will be conducted on Tuesdays, Wednesdays and Thursdays during September 
and October, but not directly around Labor Day (Sept 1‐7) or Walk to School Week (Oct 4‐8).  
 
   

Page 34



 
Alameda CTC Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee  September 2, 2010 
Update on Countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Count Program  3 

Methodology 
All locations will be counted using the same methodology used in Alameda County in 2008 and 
2009 counts, which  is similar  to  that used by MTC  in  the past and  is based on UC Berkeley’s 
SafeTREC  recommendations.  It  is  compatible  to  that  used  for  the  National  Bike/Ped 
Documentation Project. Each site will be counted for two 2‐hour time periods between 12pm 
and 6pm. The default counting periods are 12‐2pm and 4‐6pm, but some sites may be counted 
at different times to capture the peak period for that site. 
 
Fiscal Impacts 
There are no fiscal impacts at this time. 
 
Attachments 
08A  Selection Criteria for Count Locations.pdf 
 

Page 35

http://bikepeddocumentation.org/
http://bikepeddocumentation.org/


 

 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 
 

 Page 36



Alameda County Bicycle and Pedestrian Count Locations - Sept/Oct 2010 BPAC Meeting 09/09/10

Attachment 08A

ID# Street Cross street City

ACTIA Planning 

Area R
eg

 B
ik

e 
P

la
n

C
o

. B
ik

e 
P

la
n

C
o

. P
ed

 P
la

n

Sc
h

o
o

l

Tr
ai

l

2
0

0
0

2
0

0
1

2
0

0
2

2
0

0
3

2
0

0
4

2
0

0
5

2
0

0
6

2
0

0
7

2
0

0
8

2
0

0
9 Final 2010 

Count List

1 Atlantic Avenue Webster Street Alameda North x x x x x x x x x 1

2 Broadway (CA 61) Calhoun Street Alameda North x x 1

3 Central Avenue Fifth Street Alameda North x x x x x 1

7 Park Street Otis Drive Alameda North x x 1

95 Buchanan Street Jackson Street Albany North x x x x 1

9 Solano Avenue Masonic Ave(Ohlone Trail) Albany North x x x x x x x 1

10 Ashby Avenue (CA 13) Hillegass Avenue Berkeley North x x x x x x x x x 1

12 Ashby Avenue (CA 13) Telegraph Avenue Berkeley North x x x 1

14 College Avenue Derby Street Berkeley North x x x 1

16 Hearst Avenue Milvia Street Berkeley North x x x x x x x x x x x x 1

17 San Pablo Avenue Virginia Street Berkeley North x x x 1

22 Hesperian Boulevard Lewelling Boulevard County Central x x x x x x x x 1

23 Mission Boulevard (CA 185) Grove Way County Central x x x 1

24 Redwood Road Castro Valley Boulevard County Central x x x x x x 1

28 Dublin Boulevard Hacienda Drive Dublin East x x x x x 1

27 Dublin Boulevard Scarlett Drive (Iron Horse Trail) Dublin East x x x x x x x 1

30 Powell Street Christie Avenue Emeryville North x x x 1

31 San Pablo Avenue 40th Street Emeryville North x X x x x x x 1

32 Fremont Blvd Mowry Avenue Fremont South x x 1

98 Fremont Blvd (Washington) Union Street Fremont South x 1

33 Fremont Boulevard (CA 84) Peralta Boulevard Fremont South x x x 1

34 Mission Boulevard (CA 238) Nichols Avenue Fremont South x x x 1

35 Mowry Avenue (CA 84) Cherry Lane Fremont South x x 1

36 Paseo Padre Parkway Mowry Avenue Fremont South x x x x x x x 1

99 Paseo Padre Parkway Decoto Rd Fremont South x x x x 1

38 Warm Springs Grimmer Fremont South x x x x 1

97 C Street Grand Street Hayward Central x x x 1

39 Foothill Boulevard (CA 238) D Street Hayward Central x x x 1

41 Mission Boulevard (CA 238) Jefferson Street Hayward Central x x x x x x x 1

45 Santa Clara Street Ocie Way Hayward Central x x x 1

47 Winton Avenue Amador Street Hayward Central x x x x x x 1

49 East Street Vasco Road Livermore East x x x x x x 1

50 Railroad Avenue First Street Livermore East x x 1

51 Ardenwood Boulevard (CA 84) Newark Boulevard (E side interchange ramp)Newark South x x 1

52 Thornton Avenue Willow Street Newark South x x x x x x x 1

53 66th Avenue San Leandro St Oakland North x x x 1

55 Bancroft Avenue Auseon Avenue Oakland North x x x x 1

56 Broadway 12th Street Oakland North x x x 1

57 Broadway 20th Street Oakland North x x x 1

58 Chatham Road 13th Avenue Oakland North x x x 1

59 Doolittle Drive (CA 61) Airport Access Road Oakland North x x x X x x 1

62 Fruitvale Avenue Foothill Blvd Oakland North x x x 1

63 Fruitvale Avenue Alameda Ave Oakland North x x x 1

64 Grand Avenue Staten Ave Oakland North x x x 1

65 Grand Avenue Lake Park Oakland North x x x x 1

70 MacArthur Boulevard  38th Avenue Oakland North x x x x x 1

72 Mandela Parkway 14th Street Oakland North x x x 1

75 Mountain La Salle Oakland North x x 1

96 Telegraph Avenue 40th Street Oakland North x x x 1

Historical CountsW/in  1/4 miIn Plan

Page 1 of 2 Page 37



Alameda County Bicycle and Pedestrian Count Location - Sept/Oct 2010

ID# Street Cross street City

ACTIA Planning 

Area R
eg

 B
ik

e 
P

la
n

C
o

. B
ik

e 
P

la
n

C
o

. P
ed

 P
la

n

Sc
h

o
o

l

Tr
ai

l

2
0

0
0

2
0

0
1

2
0

0
2

2
0

0
3

2
0

0
4

2
0

0
5

2
0

0
6

2
0

0
7

2
0

0
8

2
0

0
9 Final 2010 

Count List

76 Telegraph Avenue 27th Street Oakland North x x x X x x x x x 1

78 Webster Street 7th Street Oakland North x x 1

79 Grand Avenue Oakland Avenue Piedmont North X x x x x x 1

80 Main St Bernal Ave Pleasanton East x x x x 1

81 Owens Drive Andrews Drive Pleasanton East x x 1

82 Santa Rita Road Francisco Street Pleasanton East x x x x x 1

83 Stoneridge Drive Hopyard Road Pleasanton East x x x x x x x 1

85 Bancroft Avenue Estudillo Avenue San Leandro Central x x x x x x x x 1

87 Davis Street (CA 61) Pierce Avenue San Leandro Central x x 1

88 East 14th Street (CA 185) Hesperian Boulevard San Leandro Central x x x 1

89 East 14th Street (CA 185) Maud Avenue San Leandro Central x x 1

92 Alvarado-Niles Road Dyer Street Union City South x x x x 1

93 Decoto Road Alvarado-Niles Road Union City South x x x 1

94 Decoto Road 7th Street Union City South x x x x x 1

Total Number of Count Locations: 63

08A_Selection_Criteria_for_Count_Locations.xls Page 2 of 2 Page 38



BPAC Meeting 09/09/10 
                 Attachment 10

Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



1947 Center Street, 3rd Floor, Berkeley, California, 94704 
Telephone:  510.981.7010    TTY:  510.981.7075    Fax:  510.981.7060 

E-mail:  transportation@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

 
Public Works Department 
Transportation Division  
 
ACTIA BICYCLE/PEDESTRIAN COUNTYWIDE DISCRETIONARY FUND GRANT 

PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT  

PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT NUMBER: 6 

REPORTING PERIOD: From: January 1, 2010  To: June 30, 2010 

 
PROJECT SPONSOR: City of Berkeley 

PROJECT TITLE: Ashby BART Station/Ed Roberts Campus 
Pedestrian and Bicycle Access and Safety Project 

ACTIA PROJECT No: A07-0008 

 
STATUS 

Construction is ongoing, nearing substantial completion. 

 
ACTIONS (In this Reporting Period) 

Construction of the overall project reached approximately 95% completion.  The contractor began 
addressing punch-list work. 

 
ANTICIPATED ACTIONS (In Next Reporting Period) 

Construction will finish, with completion of punch-list items scheduled by September 30, 2010.  
Project close-out activities will begin.  

 
SCHEDULE CHANGES 

 The project remains on schedule, as shown in Attachment B of the Agreement, Amendment 
1. 

 The project schedule has been revised and a Grant Amendment Request (A-2)to reflect the 
proposed changes is attached for review and approval. 

 
SCOPE CHANGES 

 The project description is unchanged, and is the same as shown in Attachment A of the 
Agreement. 

Page 45



  

Page 2 of 3 
 

 The scope of the project has been modified and a Grant Amendment Request to reflect the 
proposed changes is attached for review and approval. 

 
 
BUDGET 

 The Task Budgets, as shown in Attachment C of the Agreement, are essentially unchanged. 

 Changes are proposed to the Task Budgets. A Grant Amendment Request to reflect the 
proposed changes is attached for review and approval. 

 
EXPENDITURES 

 A Request for Reimbursement is included with this Progress Report. 

 No Request for Reimbursement is included with this Progress Report.  (If checked, then complete 
one of two check boxes below.)  

   A Request for Reimbursement was submitted within the last six 
months, on this date:  June 22, 2010 

   No Request for Reimbursement has been submitted within the last six 
months for the following reason(s):  
 

 
GENERAL 

 At this time we anticipate no problems on the project. 

 We anticipate problems in the following area(s) and would appreciate any assistance you could 
offer:  (enter description of any areas of concern and type of assistance requested here)   

 We anticipate problems in the following area(s) but do not feel we need your assistance at this 
time:  (enter description of any areas of concern here)   
 

 
PUBLICITY 

 Updated and accurate project information is included, with a link to ACTIA’s website, at the 
following web address: www.edrobertscampus.org  

 

 An article which highlighted this Project was published on the following date(s) in the 
publication(s) listed:   

 
 
SIGNALS 

 Signal modifications are not part of the Project. 

 Signal modifications are part of the Project. 

 Considered Included (please check the appropriate box) 
   Audible Pedestrian Signals 

Page 46



  

Page 3 of 3 
 

   Adjustable Pedestrian Timing 

   Emergency Vehicle Pre-Emption 

 
CONTRACT REPORTING 

 Form attached (required for Project Progress Report No.’s 2 and 4). 

 Form not required (Project Progress Reports No.’s 1 and 3). 

 
PERFORMANCE MEASURES 

 There are no Performance Measures for this project. 

 There are Performance Measures for this project. A completed Performance Measures Report 
(Table F-1 from the grant agreement) is attached to this report. 

 

Page 47



1947 Center Street, 3rd Floor, Berkeley, California, 94704 
Telephone:  510.981.7010    TTY:  510.981.7075    Fax:  510.981.7060 

E-mail:  transportation@ci.berkeley.ca.us 
 

 
Public Works Department 
Transportation Division  
 
 

ACTIA TCD Match Grant  

PROGRESS REPORT 
 
PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT No.: 5 

REPORTING PERIOD: From: January 1, 2010 To: June 30, 2010 

PROJECT SPONSOR: City of Berkeley 

PROJECT TITLE: Ed Roberts Campus Project 

ACTIA PROJECT No.: A07-0020 

 
STATUS: 
Construction is ongoing, nearing substantial completion.   

 
ACTIONS (in this reporting period): 
Construction of the overall project reached approximately 95% completion.  The contractor began 
addressing punch-list work.  

 
ANTICIPATED ACTIONS (in next reporting period): 
Construction will finish, with completion of punch-list items scheduled by September 30, 2010.  Project close-out 
activities will begin.   

 
GENERAL: 

 At this time we anticipate no problems on the project. 

 We anticipate problems in the following area(s) but do not feel we need your assistance at 
this time:        

 We anticipate problems in the following area(s) and would appreciate any assistance you 
could offer:       

 

Page 48



ACTIA TCD Match Grant Fund - Grant Project Progress Report 

Page 2 of 3 

 
 
SCHEDULE, SCOPE, AND BUDGET: 

 The project schedule, scope, task budgets, and performance measures remain unchanged, as 
shown in Attachments A, B, C, and D of the Grant Funding Agreement or previously 
approved amendment. 

 There are proposed changes to the project schedule, scope, task budgets, and/or 
performance measures. (If checked, proceed to the section below) 

  A Grant Amendment Request was previously submitted on (enter date) and is 
awaiting approval. 

  Revisions to the following area(s) are being proposed and a Grant Amendment 
Request is attached for review and approval. (Check all that apply) 

   Project Scope (Exhibit B of Grant Amendment Request Form) 
   Task Budgets (Exhibit C of Grant Amendment Request Form) 
   Project Schedule (Exhibit D of Grant Amendment Request Form) 
   Project Performance Measures (Exhibit E of Grant Amendment Request Form) 
 
EXPENDITURES 

 A Request for Reimbursement is included with this Progress Report. 
 No Request for Reimbursement is included with this Progress Report.  (If checked, proceed 

to section below.) 
  A Request for Reimbursement was submitted within the last six months on June 22, 

2010.   This was the final TCD reimbursements request, fully expending the funds. 
  No Request for Reimbursement has been submitted within the last six months for the 

following reason(s):       
 

  
 
 

PUBLICITY: 

 As required per the Grant Funding Agreement, updated and accurate project information is 
included, with a link to the ACTIA Web site, at the following web address: 
http://edrobertscampus.org/public.html 

 As required per the Grant Funding Agreement, an article was published, highlighting this 
Project. 

  A copy of the article is attached to this report:   
  An article was submitted to ACTIA for publication in the ACTIA newsletter on (enter 

date). 

Page 49



ACTIA TCD Match Grant Fund - Grant Project Progress Report 

Page 3 of 3 

 
 

 
 

 

SIGNALS: 
 Signal modifications are not part of the Project. 

 Signal modifications are part of the Project. (If checked, proceed to the section below) 

 Considered Included (Check all that apply) 
   Audible Pedestrian Signals 

   Adjustable Pedestrian Timing 

   Emergency Vehicle Pre-Emption 

CONTRACT REPORTING: 
 Form attached. (Required with Project Progress Reports No. 2 and No. 4) 

 Form not attached. (Not required with Project Progress Reports No. 1 and No. 3, or if no 
grant funds have been expended to date) 

Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
July 2, 2010 

 

ACTIA BICYCLE/PEDESTRIAN COUNTYWIDE DISCRETIONARY FUND GRANT 

PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT  

PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT NUMBER: 2 

REPORTING PERIOD: From: January 1, 2010 To: June 30, 2010 

 
PROJECT SPONSOR: East Bay Regional Park District  

PROJECT TITLE: Iron Horse Trail Feasibility Study – Dublin BART to Santa Rita Road 

ACTIA PROJECT No: A09-0019 

 
STATUS 

Active 

 
ACTIONS (In this Reporting Period) 

Task #2, Prepare Draft and Final Feasibility Study 

Task 3, Oversee Consultant’s Work 

 
ANTICIPATED ACTIONS (In Next Reporting Period) 

Draft Feasibility Study 

 
SCHEDULE CHANGES 

 The project remains on schedule, as shown in Attachment B of the Agreement. 

 The project schedule has been revised and a Grant Amendment Request to reflect the 
proposed changes is attached for review and approval. 

 
SCOPE CHANGES 

 The project description is unchanged, and is the same as shown in Attachment A of the 
Agreement. 

 The scope of the project has been modified and a Grant Amendment Request to reflect the 
proposed changes is attached for review and approval. 

Page 57



EAST BAY REGIONAL PARK DISTRICT 
 
 

2 of 3 

 
BUDGET 

 The Task Budgets, as shown in Attachment C of the Agreement, are essentially unchanged. 

 Changes are proposed to the Task Budgets. A Grant Amendment Request to reflect the 
proposed changes is attached for review and approval. 

 
EXPENDITURES 

 A Request for Reimbursement is included with this Progress Report. 

 No Request for Reimbursement is included with this Progress Report.  (If checked, then complete 
one of two check boxes below.)  

   A Request for Reimbursement was submitted within the last six 
months, on this date: (enter date here)    

   No Request for Reimbursement has been submitted within the last six 
months for the following reason(s): (A Payment Request will be submitted 
by the end of July.) 

 
GENERAL 

 At this time we anticipate no problems on the project. 

 We anticipate problems in the following area(s) and would appreciate any assistance you could 
offer:  (enter description of any areas of concern and type of assistance requested here)   
 

 We anticipate problems in the following area(s) but do not feel we need your assistance at this 
time:  (enter description of any areas of concern here)   
 

 
PUBLICITY 

 Updated and accurate project information is included, with a link to ACTIA’s website, at the 
following web address: (http://www.ebparks.org/news/061909a)   

 

 An article which highlighted this Project was published on the following date(s) in the 
publication(s) listed:  (Article for publication in ACTIA Newsletter submitted on May 11, 2010.)   
 

 
SIGNALS 

 Signal modifications are not part of the Project. 

 Signal modifications are part of the Project. 

 Considered Included (please check the appropriate box) 
   Audible Pedestrian Signals 

Page 58



EAST BAY REGIONAL PARK DISTRICT 
 
 

3 of 3 

   Adjustable Pedestrian Timing 

   Emergency Vehicle Pre-Emption 

 
CONTRACT REPORTING 

 Form attached (required for Project Progress Report No.’s 2 and 4). 

 Form not required (Project Progress Reports No.’s 1 and 3). Grant less than $50,000. 

 
PERFORMANCE MEASURES 

 There are no Performance Measures for this project. 

 There are Performance Measures for this project. A completed Performance Measures Report 
(Table F-1 from the grant agreement) is attached to this report. 

 
 
Thank you for your support and participation in this project. If you need any further 
information, please contact me at jrasmussen@ebparks.org or 510-544-2204. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Jeff Rasmussen 
Grants Manager 
 

Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



ACTIA Countywide Discretionary Fund - Cycle 4  Grant Progress Report  

 Page 1 of 3 

 

 

 

 

 

           

 

ACTIA BICYCLE/PEDESTRIAN COUNTYWIDE DISCRETIONARY FUND GRANT 

PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT  

PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT NUMBER: 2 

REPORTING PERIOD: From: January 1, 2010 To: June 30, 2010 

 
PROJECT SPONSOR: Alameda County CMA/CTC 

PROJECT TITLE: Alameda Countywide Bicycle Plan 

ACTIA PROJECT No: A09-0023 

 
STATUS  The project is moving forward within the budget and on schedule.  See “Actions,” 
below. 

 

 
ACTIONS (In this Reporting Period):  Revised scope, had meeting with BPAC and Bike/Ped 
Working Group, developed and distributed questionnaire for existing conditions chapter, began to 
collect existing conditions data. 

 

 
ANTICIPATED ACTIONS (In Next Reporting Period) 

Complete existing conditions chapter, write current practices chapter, initiate vision and goals 
chapter, approach options, and discussion, hold BPAC and Bike/Ped Working Group meetings. 

 
SCHEDULE CHANGES 

 The project remains on schedule, as shown in Attachment B of the Agreement. 

X
 

The project schedule has been revised and a Grant Amendment Request to reflect the 
proposed changes is attached for review and approval. 

 

Page 69



ACTIA Countywide Discretionary Fund - Cycle 4  Grant Progress Report  

 Page 2 of 3 

SCOPE CHANGES 

 The project description is unchanged, and is the same as shown in Attachment A of the 
Agreement. 

 The scope of the project has been modified and a Grant Amendment Request to reflect the 
proposed changes is attached for review and approval. 

 
BUDGET 

 The Task Budgets, as shown in Attachment C of the Agreement, are essentially unchanged. 

X
 

Changes are proposed to the Task Budgets. A Grant Amendment Request to reflect the 
proposed changes is attached for review and approval. 

 
EXPENDITURES 

 A Request for Reimbursement is included with this Progress Report. 

X
 

No Request for Reimbursement is included with this Progress Report.  (If checked, then complete 
one of two check boxes below.)  

  X  A Request for Reimbursement was submitted within the last six 
months, on this date: (May 2010)    

   No Request for Reimbursement has been submitted within the last six 
months for the following reason(s): (enter reasons here) 

 
GENERAL 

S
 

At this time we anticipate no problems on the project. 

 We anticipate problems in the following area(s) and would appreciate any assistance you could 
offer:  (enter description of any areas of concern and type of assistance requested here)   

 

 We anticipate problems in the following area(s) but do not feel we need your assistance at this 
time:  (enter description of any areas of concern here)   

 

 
PUBLICITY 

 Updated and accurate project information is included, with a link to ACTIA’s website, at the 
following web address: (www.alamedactc.com)   

 

Page 70



ACTIA Countywide Discretionary Fund - Cycle 4  Grant Progress Report  

 Page 3 of 3 

 An article which highlighted this Project was published on the following date(s) in the 
publication(s) listed:  (enter dates and the names of any publications here)   

 

 
SIGNALS 

X
 

Signal modifications are not part of the Project. 

 Signal modifications are part of the Project. 

 Considered Included (please check the appropriate box) 

   Audible Pedestrian Signals 

   Adjustable Pedestrian Timing 

   Emergency Vehicle Pre-Emption 

 
CONTRACT REPORTING 

X
 

Form attached (required for Project Progress Report No.’s 2 and 4). 

 Form not required (Project Progress Reports No.’s 1 and 3). 

 
PERFORMANCE MEASURES 

X
 

There are no Performance Measures for this project. 

 There are Performance Measures for this project. A completed Performance Measures Report 
(Table F-1 from the grant agreement) is attached to this report. 

 

Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



A
C

TI
A

 B
ic

yc
le

/P
ed

es
tri

an
 C

ou
nt

yw
id

e 
G

ra
nt

 F
un

d 
Pr

og
ra

m
  

 
 

 
A

09
-0

02
4 

C
yc

le
 4

 
 

  
A

T
T

A
C

H
M

E
N

T
 D

 

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 M

E
A

SU
R

E
S 

 Pr
oj

ec
t P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 M

ea
su

re
s:

  T
ab

le
 D

-1
 d

es
cr

ib
es

 w
ha

t o
ut

co
m

e-
ba

se
d 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 m
ea

su
re

 y
ou

 p
la

n 
to

 e
va

lu
at

e 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t/p
ro

gr
am

 is
 m

ee
tin

g 
its

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
. 

 
T

ab
le

 D
-1

: P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
ea

su
re

s 
R

ep
or

t 

N
o.

 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 M

ea
su

re
 

G
oa

l (1
)  

P
ro

gr
es

s/
A

ct
iv

it
y 

th
is

 P
er

io
d

 
C

u
m

u
la

ti
ve

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 D
at

e 
R

em
ar

ks
 

1 
N

um
be

r o
f s

ch
oo

ls 
of

fe
re

d 
a 

co
m

pr
eh

en
siv

e 
SR

2S
 p

ro
gr

am
 

90
 

72
 

84
 

D
et

ail
s p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 T

ab
le 

F-
1 

A
pp

en
di

x 
(fo

rm
at

 to
 b

e d
eve

lop
ed

 
by

 sp
on

sor
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ved
 b

y 
A

CT
IA

 in
 a

dv
an

ce)
 

2 
N

um
be

r o
f s

tu
de

nt
s a

tte
nd

in
g 

 
sc

ho
ol

s o
ffe

rin
g 

a 
co

m
pr

eh
en

siv
e 

SR
2S

 p
ro

gr
am

 

31
,5

00
 

34
,2

02
 

38
,6

40
 

D
et

ail
s p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 T

ab
le 

F-
1 

A
pp

en
di

x 
(fo

rm
at

 to
 b

e d
eve

lop
ed

 
by

 sp
on

sor
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ved
 b

y 
A

CT
IA

 in
 a

dv
an

ce)
 

3 
N

um
be

r o
f s

tu
de

nt
s w

ho
 

re
ce

iv
ed

 in
-c

las
sr

oo
m

 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

ns
 

5,
40

0 
1,

00
6 

2,
60

0 
D

et
ail

s p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 T
ab

le 
F-

1 
A

pp
en

di
x 

(fo
rm

at
 to

 b
e d

eve
lop

ed
 

by
 sp

on
sor

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
ved

 b
y 

A
CT

IA
 in

 a
dv

an
ce)

 
4 

N
um

be
r o

f s
tu

de
nt

s w
ho

 
at

te
nd

ed
 a

n 
as

se
m

bl
y 

pr
og

ra
m

 
28

,0
00

 
5,

55
4 

12
,5

01
 

D
et

ail
s p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 T

ab
le 

F-
1 

A
pp

en
di

x 
(fo

rm
at

 to
 b

e d
eve

lop
ed

 
by

 sp
on

sor
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ved
 b

y 
A

CT
IA

 in
 a

dv
an

ce)
 

5 
N

um
be

r o
f s

tu
de

nt
s w

ho
 

pa
rti

cip
at

ed
 in

 a
fte

r-s
ch

oo
l 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 fo
cu

se
d 

on
 

w
alk

in
g/

bi
ki

ng
 

90
0 

17
5 

46
3 

D
et

ail
s p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 T

ab
le 

F-
1 

A
pp

en
di

x 
(fo

rm
at

 to
 b

e d
eve

lop
ed

 
by

 sp
on

sor
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ved
 b

y 
A

CT
IA

 in
 a

dv
an

ce)
 

6 
M

od
e 

sh
ift

 b
y 

fa
m

ili
es

/s
tu

de
nt

s t
o 

bi
cy

cli
ng

 
an

d/
or

 w
alk

in
g 

as
 a

 re
su

lt 
of

 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 

10
%

  
N

.A
. 

N
.A

. 
D

et
ail

s p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 T
ab

le 
F-

1 
A

pp
en

di
x 

(fo
rm

at
 to

 b
e d

eve
lop

ed
 

by
 sp

on
sor

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
ved

 b
y 

A
CT

IA
 in

 a
dv

an
ce)

 

Page 75



 A
CT

IA
 P

ar
at

ra
ns

it 
G

ap
 C

yc
le 

4 
G

ra
nt

 F
un

di
ng

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t  

 
 

 
A

09
-0

02
4 

 
 7 

N
um

be
r o

f w
alk

in
g 

an
d 

bi
cy

cli
ng

 sc
ho

ol
-w

id
e 

ev
en

ts
  

20
0 

85
 

18
6 

D
et

ail
s p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 T

ab
le 

F-
1 

A
pp

en
di

x 
(fo

rm
at

 to
 b

e d
eve

lop
ed

 
by

 sp
on

sor
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ved
 b

y 
A

CT
IA

 in
 a

dv
an

ce)
 

8 
N

um
be

r o
f s

tu
de

nt
s r

ec
eiv

in
g 

in
-c

las
s b

icy
cle

 sa
fe

ty
 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
an

d 
tra

in
in

g 

2,
50

0 
1,

76
0 

3,
38

9 
D

et
ail

s p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 T
ab

le 
F-

1 
A

pp
en

di
x 

(fo
rm

at
 to

 b
e d

eve
lop

ed
 

by
 sp

on
sor

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
ved

 b
y 

A
CT

IA
 in

 a
dv

an
ce)

 
9 

N
um

be
r o

f w
alk

 a
bo

ut
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
25

 
 

0 
17

 
D

et
ail

s p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 T
ab

le 
F-

1 
A

pp
en

di
x 

(fo
rm

at
 to

 b
e d

eve
lop

ed
 

by
 sp

on
sor

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
ved

 b
y 

A
CT

IA
 in

 a
dv

an
ce)

 
10

 
N

um
be

r o
f c

on
ce

pt
ua

l p
lan

s 
re

su
lti

ng
 fr

om
 w

alk
 a

bo
ut

s 
25

  
0 

17
 

D
et

ail
s p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 T

ab
le 

F-
1 

A
pp

en
di

x 
(fo

rm
at

 to
 b

e d
eve

lop
ed

 
by

 sp
on

sor
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ved
 b

y 
A

CT
IA

 in
 a

dv
an

ce)
 

11
 

N
um

be
r o

f t
ea

ch
er

s w
ho

 
re

ce
iv

ed
 S

R2
S 

tra
in

in
g 

on
 

cla
ss

ro
om

 p
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
 

25
0 

22
 

42
 

D
et

ail
s p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 T

ab
le 

F-
1 

A
pp

en
di

x 
(fo

rm
at

 to
 b

e d
eve

lop
ed

 
by

 sp
on

sor
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ved
 b

y 
A

CT
IA

 in
 a

dv
an

ce)
 

12
 

N
um

be
r o

f a
fte

r-s
ch

oo
l 

pr
ov

id
er

s w
ho

 re
ce

iv
ed

 S
R2

S 
tra

in
in

gs
 

40
 

5 
15

 
D

et
ail

s p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 T
ab

le 
F-

1 
A

pp
en

di
x 

(fo
rm

at
 to

 b
e d

eve
lop

ed
 

by
 sp

on
sor

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
ved

 b
y 

A
CT

IA
 in

 a
dv

an
ce)

 
13

 
N

um
be

r o
f s

ch
oo

ls 
pr

ov
id

ed
 

w
ith

 re
so

ur
ce

s/
as

sis
ta

nc
e 

(o
ut

sid
e 

of
 th

os
e 

ta
rg

et
ed

 fo
r 

co
m

pr
eh

en
siv

e 
pr

og
ra

m
) 

90
 

23
 

42
 

D
et

ail
s p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 T

ab
le 

F-
1 

A
pp

en
di

x 
(fo

rm
at

 to
 b

e d
eve

lop
ed

 
by

 sp
on

sor
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ved
 b

y 
A

CT
IA

 in
 a

dv
an

ce)
 

14
 

N
um

be
r o

f p
ar

en
ts

, 
vo

lu
nt

ee
rs

, a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

m
em

be
rs

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 S

R2
S 

pr
og

ra
m

s 

30
0 

14
2 

92
4 

D
et

ail
s p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 T

ab
le 

F-
1 

A
pp

en
di

x 
(fo

rm
at

 to
 b

e d
eve

lop
ed

 
by

 sp
on

sor
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ved
 b

y 
A

CT
IA

 in
 a

dv
an

ce)
 

N
ot

es
: 

1.
 

G
oa

l s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

on
sis

te
nt

 w
ith

 g
oa

ls 
an

d/
or

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 st

at
ed

 in
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n.
 

Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



       

ACTIA Countywide Discretionary Fund - Cycle 4  Grant Progress Report  
 Page 1 of 8 

 
 

        

Human Services Department – Paratransit Program 
3300 Capitol Avenue, P.O. Box 5006 

Fremont, CA 94537-5006 
(510) 574-2053 phone / (510) 574-2054 fax 

ACTIA BICYCLE/PEDESTRIAN COUNTYWIDE DISCRETIONARY FUND GRANT 

PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT  

PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT NUMBER: 2 

REPORTING PERIOD: From: January 1, 2010 To: June 30, 2010 

 
PROJECT SPONSOR: City of Fremont 

Main Project Collaborator: Generations Community Wellness 

PROJECT TITLE: Tri-City Senior Walk Clubs 

Marketed as the “Walk This Way Program” 

ACTIA PROJECT No: A09-0026 

 
STATUS 

Project started in July 2009.  Two new walking program sites added. 

 
ACTIONS (In this Reporting Period) 

• Reviewed project progress with Generations Community Wellness and determined 
changes needed for future program implementation. 

• Revised Walk This Way curriculum and participant workbook.  Curriculum covers four 
major topic areas: physical activity (importance of being active, endurance, strength, 
flexibility, and balance), nutrition (nutrient density, label reading & dietary fiber, bone 
health & portions, fats & oils), health education (diabetes & heart diseases, osteoporosis 
& osteoarthritis, and stroke) and “getting around town” (pedestrian safety, community 
walkability, older driver safety, community transportation resources, and fun places to 
walk). 

• Established two new program sites: One at the Fremont Community Center and one at 
Wisteria Place senior housing in Union City. Each weekly program is 90 minutes and 
includes weekly educational topic discussion, warm up exercises, walking, games that 
promote balance, coordination, strength, flexibility and brain fitness, and cool down 
exercises.  Field outing arranged where participants walked to a farmers market or local 
grocery store for an educational session on nutrition/healthy eating and pedestrian safety. 

• Assessments conducted with each participant at the following intervals: Day 1, Week 8 
and Week 16.  Assessments included number of chair stands completed for a timed 
interval, amount of time taken to complete ¼ mile walk (one with long strides and one 
with march and side steps). Majority of participants showed improvements on all 
assessments performed. 

Page 83



ACTIA Countywide Discretionary Fund - Cycle 4  Grant Progress Report  
 Page 2 of 8 

• Program participants also attended supplemental programs that were coordinated by City 
of Fremont staff. These programs included: 

Nutrition Education Classes 
 Older Driver Safety Workshops 
 Travel Training Workshops 
 

• Met with Executive Director and staff of the Afghan Elderly Association to assess how 
agency-initiated weekly walking and education program was progressing. Determined 
that Walk This Way fitness instructor was needed to provide program structure and 
continuity for participants and to provide training and support for agency staff to lead 
participants through weekly program activities.  Will start new WTW program site at the 
AEA’s weekly program in July 2010.  Identified AEA agency staff who will provide 
interpretation assistance for formal 16 week program as well as staff who will lead 
alumni group after program graduation. 

• Conducted outreach to individuals and groups interested in Walk This Way. Five new 
program sites identified for program implementation in the next reporting period: Afghan 
Elderly Association, Fremont Senior Center, Fremont Teen Center, Newark Silliman 
Center and Union City Kennedy Center. 

• Continue to provide support and training as needed for five peer leaders who are 
facilitating weekly walking program in Fremont, Newark and Union City for graduates of 
the first Walk This Way sessions.  Peer leaders were sent to an intensive 3 day training 
conducted by Generations Community Wellness at San Jose State University in January 
2010.   

• Program surveys were completed at the end of the 16 week program.  A summary of 
survey responses is included at the end of this report. 

 
ANTICIPATED ACTIONS (In Next Reporting Period) 

• Continue outreach to potential senior groups and walking club sites. 

• Revise program curriculum and workbook, if needed, based on program participant 
feedback. 

• Identify four additional program sites and implement new round of Walk This Way 
during Spring 2011.   

• Continue evaluation of the Walk This Way program. 
 
SCHEDULE CHANGES 

 The project remains on schedule, as shown in Attachment B of the Agreement. 

 The project schedule has been revised and a Grant Amendment Request to reflect the 
proposed changes is attached for review and approval. 

 
SCOPE CHANGES 

 The project description is unchanged, and is the same as shown in Attachment A of the 
Agreement. 

Page 84



ACTIA Countywide Discretionary Fund - Cycle 4  Grant Progress Report  
 Page 3 of 8 

 The scope of the project has been modified and a Grant Amendment Request to reflect the 
proposed changes is attached for review and approval. 

Based on participant feedback and experience of Generations Community Wellness in 
recruiting and retaining walk program participants as well as the difficulty in managing a 20 
week mostly outdoor program with inclement weather, project staff have modified the program 
structure from 20 weeks to 16 weeks. 

 
BUDGET 

 The Task Budgets, as shown in Attachment C of the Agreement, are essentially unchanged. 

 Changes are proposed to the Task Budgets. A Grant Amendment Request to reflect the 
proposed changes is attached for review and approval. 

 
EXPENDITURES 

 A Request for Reimbursement is included with this Progress Report.  Request for 
reimbursement mailed in August 2010 under separate cover by the City of Fremont’s 
Finance Department. 

 No Request for Reimbursement is included with this Progress Report.  (If checked, then complete 
one of two check boxes below.)  

   A Request for Reimbursement was submitted within the last six 
months, on this date: (enter date here)    

   No Request for Reimbursement has been submitted within the last six 
months for the following reason(s): (enter reasons here) 

 
GENERAL 

 At this time we anticipate no problems on the project. 

 We anticipate problems in the following area(s) and would appreciate any assistance you could 
offer:  (enter description of any areas of concern and type of assistance requested here)   
 

 We anticipate problems in the following area(s) but do not feel we need your assistance at this 
time:  (enter description of any areas of concern here)   
 

 
PUBLICITY 

 Updated and accurate project information is included, with a link to ACTIA’s website, at the 
following web address: (enter web address here)   
www.fremont.gov 

 An article which highlighted this Project was published on the following date(s) in the 
publication(s) listed:  (enter dates and the names of any publications here)   
Tri City Voice, March 24, 2010 

The Argus, July 17, 2010 

 

Page 85



ACTIA Countywide Discretionary Fund - Cycle 4  Grant Progress Report  
 Page 4 of 8 

SIGNALS 

 Signal modifications are not part of the Project. 

 Signal modifications are part of the Project. 

 Considered Included (please check the appropriate box) 
   Audible Pedestrian Signals 

   Adjustable Pedestrian Timing 

   Emergency Vehicle Pre-Emption 

 
CONTRACT REPORTING 

 Form attached (required for Project Progress Report No.’s 2 and 4). 

 Form not required (Project Progress Reports No.’s 1 and 3). 

 
PERFORMANCE MEASURES 

 There are no Performance Measures for this project. 

 There are Performance Measures for this project. A completed Performance Measures Report 
(Table D-1 from the grant agreement) is attached to this report. 

 

Page 86



ACTIA Countywide Discretionary Fund - Cycle 4  Grant Progress Report  
 Page 5 of 8 

PROJECT PERFORMANCE MEASURES REPORT 

 
Project Performance Measures:  Table D-1 describes what outcome-based performance measures are 
being evaluated to ensure that the project/program is meeting its objectives.  
 

Table D-1:  Performance Measures Report 

No. Performance Measure Progress/Activity this Period 
1 
 

Number of walking groups 
established 
6 groups by 6/30/10 
12 groups by 6/30/11 
 

4 groups started in 7/09 and met for 20 weeks: 
- Newark Senior Center  

Mondays, 9:00 – 10:30 
 

- Tropics Mobile Home Park (Union City) 
Tuesdays, 8:00 – 9:30 

 
- Fremont Senior Center 

Thursdays, 8:30 – 10:00 
 

- Fremont Senior Center  
Thursdays, 10:00 –  11:30 

 
2 groups started in 4/10 and met for 16 weeks: 

- Wisteria Place (Union City) 
Fridays, 9:00 – 10:30 

 
- Fremont Community Center 

Thursdays, 10:00 – 11:30 
 
Peer leaders were recruited, trained and are 
leading “alumni” Walk This Way groups at the 
Newark Silliman Center, Fremont Senior Center 
and Tropics Mobile Home Park. 
 

Level of program participant 
satisfaction 
Achieve satisfaction rating of 
“excellent” or “good” on at least 
90% on participant surveys of 
program experience 

94 of participants surveyed during reporting 
period rated their overall program experience as 
“excellent”.  6 rated their program experience as 
“good”. 
100% of participants surveyed during reporting 
period said they would recommend the program 
to others. 

  

Page 87



ACTIA Countywide Discretionary Fund - Cycle 4  Grant Progress Report  
 Page 6 of 8 

WALK THIS WAY  
PROGRAM EVALUATION (n=36) 

 
1. How would you rate your overall experience of the Walk This Way Program? 

Excellent Good  Fair  Poor  
 34 - 94% 2 - 6% 
 
2. How would you rate the instructor who ran this program? 

Excellent Good  Fair  Poor  
35 - 97% 1 - 3% 

 
3. Would you recommend this program to others? 

Definitely Maybe No   
 36 - 100% 
 
4. This program improved my overall health and well being: 

A lot   Quite a bit   Moderately  Slightly  Not at all 
 12 - 33% 20 - 56%  3 - 8%   1 - 3% 
 

5. This program helped me to increase my walking: 
A lot   Quite a bit   Moderately  Slightly  Not at all 
14 - 39% 18 - 50%  2 – 5.5%  2 – 5.5% 

 
6. This program helped me to increase my fruit and vegetable intake: 

A lot   Quite a bit   Moderately  Slightly  Not at all 
 7 - 19% 12 - 33%  8 - 22%  6 - 17% 3 - 8% 

 
7. This program helped me understand how to live a more healthy lifestyle: 

A lot   Quite a bit   Moderately  Slightly  Not at all 
15 - 42% 15 - 42%  4 - 10%  1 - 3%  1- 3% 
 

8. This program increased my understanding of how exercise can decrease risks for 
or manage chronic health conditions: 
A lot   Quite a bit   Moderately  Slightly  Not at all 
25 - 69% 8 - 22%  2 - 6%   1 - 3% 
 

9. This program increased my knowledge about pedestrian safety: 
A lot   Quite a bit   Moderately  Slightly  Not at all 
15 - 42% 15 - 42%  4 - 10%  1 - 3%  1- 3% 
 

10. This program increased my knowledge about driving  safety: 
A lot   Quite a bit   Moderately  Slightly  Not at all 
10 - 28% 13 - 36%  8 - 22%  3 - 8%  2 - 6% 
 

11.   This program increased my knowledge about alternative transportation resources 
in the community: 
A lot   Quite a bit   Moderately  Slightly  Not at all 

 12 - 33% 10 - 28%  6 - 16.5%  6 - 16.5% 2 - 6%   
  

Page 88



ACTIA Countywide Discretionary Fund - Cycle 4  Grant Progress Report  
 Page 7 of 8 

 
12.   What sections of the program workbook did you find MOST useful? 
- All sections were helpful 
- Alternatives to driving 
- Exercise and nutrition info 
- Warm-up exercises 
- Health awareness info 
- Reducing serious health problems through physical activity 
- Staying safe as a driver and pedestrian 
- How exercise strengthens muscles and allows you to stay active 

 
13.   What sections of the program workbook did you find LEAST useful? 
- Alternative transportation resources section 
- All sections were useful 
 
14.   Please tell us what you liked most about this program and the activities your 
participated in: 
- Having an opportunity to exercise together and see our progress over time. 
- Great program!...teacher, workbook and activities 
- Exercising as a group and supporting each other 
- Motivation from exercising together 
- Walking 
- Homework assignments kept us motivated between classes 
- The different exercises and games  
- Different modes of walking strengthened different muscle groups 
- Games were a lot of fun and helped us develop multiple skills at once 
- Developing healthy habits 
- Great teacher 
- Meeting new people and socializing in a fun setting 
- Sharing ideas about to stay motivated and healthy 
- The instructor was very patient and modified activities to our different abilities  
- Games, coordination, socializing and walking different ways 
- Trinh was a very good teacher 
- Learning different ways of walking  
- Supportive and friendly atmosphere, group activities helped us to bond and laugh 
- Variety of activities 
- Pedometers 
- Structure and pace of the program 
- I have improved a lot…can’t wait to join the alumni group! 

 
15.   What suggestions do you have for improving the program? 
- Have it be an ongoing program 
- Keep it as it is 
- Give prizes for accomplishments to encourage people to exercise everyday 
- Have class meet two or three times a week 
- More health information 
- More information of workshops outside of class that are related to exercise and health 
- Keep an instructor, like Trinh, after the program “ends” 

Page 89



ACTIA Countywide Discretionary Fund - Cycle 4  Grant Progress Report  
 Page 8 of 8 

Walk This Way 
Participant Assessment Results 

 
 
FREMONT SENIOR CENTER: Thursdays @ 10:00-11:30 am 
56% of participants increased their number of chair stands. 
87% of participants decreased the amount of time it takes to walk ¼ mile. (Long Stride) 
100% of participants decreased the amount of time it takes to walk ¼ mile. (March + Side Steps) 
 
 
WISTERIA SENIOR APARTMENTS (UNION CITY): Fridays @ 8:00-9:30 am 
100% of participants increased their number of chair stands. 
86% of participants decreased the amount of time it takes to walk ¼ mile. (Long Stride) 
Wisteria participants did not perform the march + side steps assessments. 
 
 

Page 90



 

436 14TH STREET, SUITE 600, OAKLAND, CA 94612 | T: 510.740.3150 | WWW.TRANSFORMCA.ORG 

 

Print on Sponsor’s Letterhead 

ACTIA BICYCLE/PEDESTRIAN COUNTYWIDE DISCRETIONARY FUND GRANT 

PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT  

PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT NUMBER: 2 

REPORTING PERIOD: From: January 1, 2010 To: June 30, 2010 

 
PROJECT SPONSOR: TransForm 

PROJECT TITLE: TravelChoice: New Residents 

ACTIA PROJECT No: A09-0027 

 
STATUS 

TravelChoice New Residents 

 
ACTIONS (In this Reporting Period) 

As noted in the last report, TravelChoice New Residents, with the concurrence of ACTIA staff, was 
on hiatus for the first six months of 2010 in anticipation of matching funds being acquired. The only 
activity during this reporting period was in connection with acquiring the remaining matching funds, 
including three major grant applications to TFCA, Cy Pres and the MTC Climate Initiative. 

 

On July 22, the Alameda County Transportation Commission voted unanimously to approve the 
proposed TFCA Regional Manager program. TravelChoice New Residents was included in this 
recommendation for $165,000, which is the full outstanding amount of matching funds for the 
project. This approval will allow TransForm to sign a contract with ACTC in the coming months 
and begin work on TravelChoice New Residents in earnest in September. 

 
ANTICIPATED ACTIONS (In Next Reporting Period) 

It looks as if TCNR’s TFCA grant application was successful for the full amount of funding, next 
steps include signing a contract and restarting phase I work for the project in September. 

 
SCHEDULE CHANGES 

 The project remains on schedule, as shown in Attachment B of the Agreement. 

 The project schedule has been revised and a Grant Amendment Request to reflect the 
proposed changes is attached for review and approval. 

 

Page 91



 

SCOPE CHANGES 

 The project description is unchanged, and is the same as shown in Attachment A of the 
Agreement. 

 The scope of the project has been modified and a Grant Amendment Request to reflect the 
proposed changes is attached for review and approval. 

 
BUDGET 

 The Task Budgets, as shown in Attachment C of the Agreement, are essentially unchanged. 

 Changes are proposed to the Task Budgets. A Grant Amendment Request to reflect the 
proposed changes is attached for review and approval. 

 
EXPENDITURES 

 A Request for Reimbursement is included with this Progress Report. 

 No Request for Reimbursement is included with this Progress Report.  (If checked, then complete 
one of two check boxes below.)  

   A Request for Reimbursement was submitted within the last six 
months, on this date: (enter date here)    

   No Request for Reimbursement has been submitted within the last six 
months for the following reason(s): As agreed upon with ACTIA staff, 
TCNR was suspended during the past six months, with the exception of non-
reimbursable staff time for fundraising. Therefore there were no expenses to invoice 
for. 

 
GENERAL 

 At this time we anticipate no problems on the project. 

 We anticipate problems in the following area(s) and would appreciate any assistance you could 
offer:  (enter description of any areas of concern and type of assistance requested here)   

 

 We anticipate problems in the following area(s) but do not feel we need your assistance at this 
time:  (enter description of any areas of concern here)   

 

 
PUBLICITY 

 Updated and accurate project information is included, with a link to ACTIA’s website, at the 
following web address: http://transformca.org/campaign/travelchoice 

 

 An article which highlighted this Project was published on the following date(s) in the 
publication(s) listed:  none created due to suspension   

 

Page 92



 

 
SIGNALS 

 Signal modifications are not part of the Project. 

 Signal modifications are part of the Project. 

 Considered Included (please check the appropriate box) 

   Audible Pedestrian Signals 

   Adjustable Pedestrian Timing 

   Emergency Vehicle Pre-Emption 

 
CONTRACT REPORTING 

 Form attached (required for Project Progress Report No.’s 2 and 4). 

 Form not required (Project Progress Reports No.’s 1 and 3). 

 
PERFORMANCE MEASURES 

 There are no Performance Measures for this project. 

 There are Performance Measures for this project. A completed Performance Measures Report 
(Table F-1 from the grant agreement) is attached to this report. 

 
 

 

Page 93



 

Project Performance Measures:  Table F-1 describes what outcome-based performance measures you 

are evaluating to ensure that the project/program is meeting its objectives.  

 

Outreach has not begun at this time therefore there are noperformance measures to report this 

period. 

 

Table F-1:  Performance Measures Report 

No. Performance Measure
 

Target (cumulative) 

1 Number of household contacted by 
program 

10,000 

2 Number of requests for 
information/materials (also, number of 
deliveries made) 

7,500 

3 Increase in Bicycling mode share as 
compared to a control group 

20% 

4 Increase in Walking mode share as 
compared to a control group 

30% 

5             

                  

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Note: 

1. List all performance measures included in the grant funding agreement for Project. 

 

Page 94



BPAC Meeting 09/09/10 
Attachment 10A 

Per Diem Process 
 
On July 22nd, the Commission for the Alameda County Transportation Commission met for the 
first time.  One of their actions was to raise Community Advisory Committee Per Diems to $50.  
In order to be paid, members should sign‐in to meetings attended or verify attendance with 
Staff. 
   
See below for a table summarizing Per Diem eligibility. 
 
 

BPAC Member

Regular BPAC meetings  Yes

Other Alameda CTC‐related 
meetings/events, such as: 

‐ Alameda CTC Commission 
meetings 

‐ Alameda CTC Committee 
meetings 

Yes – allowed for up to two total 
meetings per month (including BPAC 
meetings) 

 

Page 95



 

 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 
 

 Page 96



 
BPAC Meeting 09/09/10 

Attachment 11 
Alameda County Transportation Commission 

Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee 
Meeting Schedule 

for  
2010/2011 Fiscal Year 

Created: July 27, 2010 
Updated: August 24, 2010 

 
 Meeting Date Meeting Purpose 

1 September 9, 2010 • Countywide Pedestrian and Bicycle Plan Updates: General Status 
Update.  

• Review of matching funding for SR2S Climate Initiatives Program 
competitive grant project (Action) 

• Update on CDF Grants: Sponsor Presentations, as needed 
• CDF Grants, Cycles #3&4: Semi-Annual Progress Reports (Info) 
• Report on Walking Campaign 
• Report on Bike/Ped Counts 
• Update on Active Transportation Legislative Effort 

2 October 14, 2010 • Countywide Pedestrian and Bicycle Plan Updates: Input on Existing 
Conditions, Evaluation of Current Practices and Vision/Goals 

• Review of San Leandro Slough un-used grant funding (Action) 
• Update on CDF Grants: Sponsor Presentations, as needed  
• Discuss configuration of BPAC under Alameda CTC and BPAC Bylaws 
• Input on evaluation of Bike to Work Day and Get Rolling campaigns 
• Input on Alameda CTC 2010 Legislative program 
• Report on Walking Campaign Launch 

3 November 11, 2010  
 
(Veterans Day) 

• Countywide Pedestrian and Bicycle Plan Updates: Input on 
Vision/Goals 

• Input on Half-Day Bike/Ped Conference 
• Update on CDF Grants: Sponsor Presentations, as needed 
• Discuss timing of CDF Grant Cycle 5 (or at Feb. 2011 meeting) 
• Report on Bike to Work Day planning/funding and request for funding 

for annual count program 
• Grant Summary Report (Fall) for Commission (Info) 

4 February 10, 2011 
 

• Countywide Pedestrian and Bicycle Plan Updates: Input on 
Projects/Program Priorities 

• Update on CDF Grants: Sponsor Presentations, as needed 
• CDF Grants, Cycles #3&4: Semi-Annual Progress Reports (Info) 
• Review TDA Article 3 Projects (as requested) 

5 
 

April 14, 2011 
 
 

• Countywide Pedestrian and Bicycle Plan Updates: Input on 
Projects/Program Priorities  

• Update on CDF Grants: Sponsor Presentations, as needed  
• Preview of June officer elections 
• Grant Summary Report (Spring) for Commission (Info) 
• Summary of Local Pass-Thru (75%) Expenditures (Board report + 

Bike/Ped summary)  
• Report on Bike to Work Day activities  

Page 97



Alameda County Transportation Commission 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee 

\\alameda\MeasureB\SHARED\GovBoard\ACTIA\BPAC\Meetings\2010\09.09.10\11_BPAC_Calendar.do
cx 

6 June 9, 2011 • Countywide Pedestrian and Bicycle Plan Updates: General Status 
Update 

• Update on CDF Grants: Sponsor Presentations, as needed  
• CDF Grant Cycle 5: Input on Program Guidelines (if planning a Fall 

Call for Projects) 
• Admin: Distribute BPAC Action Log: 2010 
• Admin: Presentation on ACTIA’s Bike/Ped Work Program for 11/12 
• Admin: Plan Agendas for 11/12 BPAC Meetings 
• Admin: Election of Chair & Vice-Chair for FY 11/12 
• Admin: Review Bylaws 

 

Page 98



M
e

e
ti

n
g

 D
a

te
: 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r,

 9
, 

2
0

1
0

A
la

m
e
d

a
 C

o
u

n
ty

 T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti

o
n

 I
m

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

t 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
's

B
ic

y
c
le

 a
n

d
 P

e
d

e
st

ri
a
n

 A
d

vi
so

ry
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

R
o

st
e
r 

a
n

d
 A

tt
e
n

d
a
n

c
e
 F

is
c
a
l 

Y
e
a
r 

2
0
10

/
2
0
11

S
u

ff
ix

L
a
s
t 

N
a
m

e
F

ir
s
t 

N
a
m

e
C

it
y

A
p

p
o

in
te

d
 B

y
T

e
rm

 

B
e
g

a
n

R
e
-

a
p

p
tm

t.
T

e
rm

 E
x
p

ir
e
s

M
tg

s
 M

is
s
e
d

  

S
in

c
e
 J

u
ly

 '
1
0
*

1
M

s
.

T
a
b

a
ta

, 
C

h
a
ir

M
id

o
ri

O
a
k
la

n
d

C
o

u
n

c
il
m

e
m

b
e
r 

R
e
b

e
c
c
a
 K

a
p

la
n

, 
C

it
y
 o

f 

O
a
k
la

n
d

J
u

l-
0
6

S
e
p

-0
8

S
e
p

-1
0

0

2
M

r.
V

a
n

 D
e
m

a
rk

, 
V

ic
e
-C

h
a
ir

T
o

m
 

O
a
k
la

n
d

S
u

p
e
rv

is
o

r 
M

il
e
y
, 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

4
O

c
t-

0
4

J
a
n

-0
9

J
a
n

-1
1

0

3
M

r.
B

o
y
e
r

D
a
v
id

U
n
io

n
 C

it
y

M
a
y
o
r 

M
a
rk

 G
re

e
n
, 
U

n
io

n
 C

it
y

N
o
v
-0

6
N

o
v
-0

8
N

o
v
-1

0
0

4
M

r.
C

h
e
n

A
le

x
a
n
d
e
r

F
re

m
o
n
t

S
u
p
e
rv

is
o
r 

S
c
o
tt
 H

a
g
g
e
rt

y
, 
D

is
tr

ic
t 
1

O
c
t-

0
9

O
c
t-

1
1

0

5
M

s
.

G
ig

li
L
u
c
y

A
la

m
e
d
a

S
u
p
e
rv

is
o
r 

A
lic

e
 L

a
i-
B

it
k
e
r,

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
3

J
a
n
-0

7
J
a
n
-0

9
J
a
n

-1
1

0

6
M

r.
J
o
h
n
s
o
n

G
il 

S
a
n
 L

e
a
n
d
ro

 M
a
y
o
r 

A
n
th

o
n
y
 S

a
n
to

s
, 
S

a
n
 L

e
a
n
d
ro

 
O

c
t-

0
3

J
a
n
-1

0
J
a
n

-1
2

0

7
M

r.
J
o
rd

a
n

P
re

s
to

n
A

lb
a
n
y

S
u
p
e
rv

is
o
r 

C
a
rs

o
n
, 
D

is
tr

ic
t 
5

O
c
t-

0
8

O
c
t-

1
0

0

8
M

r.
S

a
lo

m
o
n
e

A
n
th

o
n
y

U
n
io

n
 C

it
y

M
a
y
 M

a
rs

h
a
ll 

K
a
m

e
n
a
, 
L
iv

e
rm

o
re

J
a
n
-1

0
J
a
n

-1
2

0

9
M

r.
K

ir
b
y

G
le

n
n
 

H
a
y
w

a
rd

S
u
p
e
rv

is
o
r 

S
te

e
le

, 
D

is
tr

ic
t 
2

O
c
t-

0
3

J
a
n
-1

0
J
a
n

-1
2

0

1
0

M
s
.

W
e
ls

h
A

n
n

P
le

a
s
a
n
to

n
M

a
y
o
r 

J
e
n
n
if
e
r 

H
o
s
te

rm
a
n
, 
P

le
a
s
a
n
to

n
O

c
t-

0
9

O
c
t-

1
1

0

1
1

V
a
c
a
n

c
y

M
a
y
o

r 
B

e
v
e
rl

y
 J

o
h

n
s
o

n
, 
A

la
m

e
d

a

\
\

al
am

ed
a\

M
ea

su
re

B
\

S
H

A
R

E
D

\
G

o
v
B

o
ar

d
\

A
C

T
IA

\
B

P
A

C
\

B
P

A
C

 R
ec

o
rd

s 
an

d
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

\
2
_

M
em

b
er

 R
o

st
er

\
B

P
A

C
_

R
o

st
er

 a
n

d
 A

tt
en

d
an

ce
_

0
8
1
1
1
0
.x

ls

BP
A

C 
M

ee
ti

ng
 0

9/
09

/1
0 

   
   

   
   

  A
tt

ac
hm

en
t 1

1A

Page 99


	03_BPAC_Meeting_Minutes_061010
	05_Memo_SR2S_Grant_Program
	05A_SR2S_Grant_Program_Application_CyclesofChange
	05B_SR2S_Countywide_Program_Workscope
	ALA-SR2Sprogram-Workscope-final-100730
	SR2S-Program Budget-(workscope attach)

	06_Progress_Report_Buchanan_Path
	10_Semi_Annual_CDF_Grant_Progress_Report 7
	10_Semi_Annual_CDF_Grant_Progress_Report 8
	10_Semi_Annual_CDF_Grant_Progress_Report 9

	Blank_Pages 1
	08_Memo_Count_Program_Status
	Blank_Pages 2
	08A_List_Bike-Ped_Count_Locations_PLACEHOLDER UNTIL 09-01-10
	Blank_Pages 3
	10_Semi_Annual_CDF_Grant_Progress_Report
	A070003-PR6_ACTransit
	A070005-PR6_Berkeley RedevelopmentAgency
	A070007-PR6_Albany
	A070013-PR5_SanLeandro
	A090016-PR1_UrbanEcology
	A090018-PR2_Dublin
	A090019-PR2_EBRPD
	A090020-PR2_Fremont
	A090021-PR2_Albany
	A090022-PR2_Newark
	A090024-PR2_TransForm
	A090025-PR2_EBBC
	A090027-PR2_TransForm
	06_Progress_Report_Buchanan_Path.pdf
	10_Semi_Annual_CDF_Grant_Progress_Report 1
	10_Semi_Annual_CDF_Grant_Progress_Report 2
	10_Semi_Annual_CDF_Grant_Progress_Report 3


	Blank_Pages 4
	10A_Per_Diem_Process
	Blank_Pages 5
	11_BPAC_Calendar
	11A_BPAC_Roster
	10_Semi_Annual_CDF_Grant_Progress_Report.pdf
	A070003-PR6_ACTransit
	A070005-PR6_Berkeley RedevelopmentAgency
	A070007-PR6_Albany
	A070013-PR5_SanLeandro
	A090016-PR1_UrbanEcology
	A090018-PR2_Dublin
	A090019-PR2_EBRPD
	A090020-PR2_Fremont
	A090021-PR2_Albany
	A090022-PR2_Newark
	A090024-PR2_TransForm
	A090025-PR2_EBBC
	A090027-PR2_TransForm
	06_Progress_Report_Buchanan_Path.pdf
	10_Semi_Annual_CDF_Grant_Progress_Report 1
	10_Semi_Annual_CDF_Grant_Progress_Report 2
	10_Semi_Annual_CDF_Grant_Progress_Report 3





